Uldaho Law Digital Commons @ Uldaho Law

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs, All

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs

5-15-2018

Credit Bureau of Eastern Idaho, Inc. v. Acedo Appellant's Brief Dckt. 45391

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This case arises out of unpaid medical bills. Jesse Acedo ("Jesse") lived with Charleane Hermosillo ("Charleane"), and together they had a child. During the course of their relationship, Charleane received medical treatment for herself and for the child at Madison Memorial Hospital. Neither Charleane nor Jesse paid the Madison Memorial Hospital for the medical services provided to her and the child. Because Charleane and Jesse failed to make any payments on the debt, Madison Memorial Hospital assigned the debt to its collection agency, Credit Bureau of Eastern Idaho, Inc., ("CBEI").

Through the course of its regular operation of business, CBEI demanded payments from Charleane and Jesse for the unpaid debt. Charleane and Jesse disregarded the notices from CBEI. CBEI then filed a complaint seeking a judgment on the unpaid debt. At the time of the filing of the complaint, CBEI had no information as to who was the father of the child that received medical services from Madison Memorial Hospital. CBEI sent out a process server to serve Charleane at her residence and any "John Doe." The process server spoke with Jesse at the residence of Charleane.¹ Jesse told the process server that Charleane was not present at the residence at that time, that he was living at that residence, and that he was the spouse of Charleane.² The process server personally handed Jesse a copy of the complaint and summons labeled as "John Doe" and informed him that he was served.³ Neither Charleane nor Jesse

APPELLANT'S BRIEF ON APPEAL F:\CLIENTS\BDS\Collections\CBEI\Files\7167.01610\Pleadings\180509 Appellant's Brief on Appeal.docx

¹ R Vol. I, pp. 137-39.

² R Vol. I, pp. 137-39.

³ R Vol. I, pp. 137-39.

responded to the complaint to deny any allegations or to assert any jurisdictional defense.

After default, Jesse voluntarily submitted to the judgment, made payments to CBEI, and did not contest several garnishments executed on his wages and bank accounts.⁴ After years of inaction and submission, Jesse belatedly raised a third-party claim of exemption or jurisdictional defense to the judgment entered against him. The Magistrate Court first held that the proper procedure was not a third-party claim of exemption but rather a motion to set the judgment aside and the Magistrate Court did in fact set the judgment aside. CBEI appealed that decision and the District Court reversed the Magistrate Court and remanded the case back for a determination on the timeliness of the motion to set the judgment aside. ⁵ Despite clear direction on remand from the District Court to consider only the issue of the timeliness of the motion to set aside judgment, the Magistrate Court side stepped the issue that was remanded and arbitrarily ruled instead that it never had jurisdiction over Jesse and therefore Jesse had no standing to file a motion to set aside and granted Jesse's claim of exemption as a third-party.⁶ The District Court affirmed the decision of the Magistrate Court and CBEI filed this appeal.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

On April 26, 2009, Jesse was personally served the complaint and summons.⁷ Jesse identified himself as the husband of Charleane Hermosillo to the process server, who noted such declaration on the affidavit of process.⁸ Despite purposefully misleading the process server about his relationship with the named defendant, Jesse took no steps to correct the

⁴ R Vol. I, pp. 141-46.

⁵ R Vol. I, pp. 325-40.

⁶ R Vol. I, pp. 386-91.

⁷ R Vol. I, pp. 137-39.

⁸ R Vol. I, pp. 137-39.

misunderstanding or otherwise seek relief from or assert any defenses against the complaint that CBEI personally served upon him. On June 2, 2009, the Magistrate Court entered a default judgment against both Charleane and Jesse.⁹

On June 4, 2009, just two days after entry of judgment, Jesse called counsel for CBEI confirming that he received and opened his copy of the judgment entered against him.¹⁰ On August 5, 2009, Jesse confirmed to CBEI that he had a daughter with Charleane, for whom some of the medical services were incurred.¹¹ On June 8, 2009, CBEI executed an Order for Continuing Garnishment on Charleane's and Jesse's personal and real property.¹² On July 7, 2009, CBEI issued an Order of Examination on Jesse.¹³ On August 9, 2009, counsel for CBEI met with Jesse on the Order for Examination and Jesse informed CBEI that his correct surname was Acedo, that he did have a daughter with Charleane and that much of the debt subject to this action were for that daughter.¹⁴ On August 19, 2009, CBEI executed a garnishment on Jesse's employer, H-K Contractors.¹⁵ On September 9, 2009, counsel for CBEI responded and explained that Jesse was liable for the majority of the judgment debt or \$2,339.44 because these bills were for Jesse's minor daughter.¹⁷ Neither Jesse nor his counsel responded to the

- ¹¹ R Vol. I, pp. 141-46.
- ¹² R Vol. I, pp. 36-37.
- ¹³ R Vol. I, pp. 41-42.
 ¹⁴ R Vol. I, pp. 141-46.
- ¹⁵ R Vol. I, pp. 55-56.
- ¹⁶ R Vol. I, p. 266.
- ¹⁷ p. () () 200.
- ¹⁷ R Vol. I, p. 268.

⁹ R Vol. I, pp. 29-32.

¹⁰ R Vol. I, pp. 141-46.

letter from CBEI. After additional attempts at garnishment, Jesse began making voluntary payments to CBEI via personal checks. Jesse made \$50 payments via check on June 21, 2011, and July 12, 2011.¹⁸ On August 24, 2011, CBEI executed a second garnishment on Jesse's employer, H-K Contractors, and again Jesse failed to file any claim of exemption.¹⁹ On February 29, 2012, CBEI executed a third garnishment on Jesse's bank account.²⁰

Prior to March of 2012, Jesse never denied being responsible for the debt nor did he deny having held himself out as the husband of Charleane to the process server who served him his copy of the complaint and summons. However, on March 14, 2012, and after more than 33 months of having knowledge of the judgment against him, being aware that the judgment referred to him, acting in accordance with the enforcement of the judgment, and failing to raise any defenses to the complaint personally served upon him and the judgment properly executed against him, Jesse filed a third-party claim of exemption claiming to not be a party to the lawsuit.²¹

COURSE OF PROCEEDINGS

On April 26, 2009, Jesse was personally served the complaint and summons.²² Jesse identified himself, to the process server, as the husband of Charleane Hermosillo, who noted such declaration on the affidavit of process.²³ On June 2, 2009, the Magistrate Court entered a motion for name change from John Doe to Jesse Hermosillo and entered a default judgment

- ²¹ R Vol. I, pp. 87-89.
- ²² R Vol. I, pp. 137-39.

¹⁸ R Vol. I, pp. 141-46.

¹⁹ R Vol. I, pp. 75-80.

²⁰ R Vol. I, pp. 83-84.

²³ R Vol. I, pp. 137-39.

against both Charleane and Jesse.²⁴ As explained more fully in the statement of facts, CBEI issued multiple garnishments, met with Jesse on an order of examination and received voluntary payments from Jesse until after the third writ of execution was issued against Jesse. On March 13, 2012, 33 months after the judgment was entered and after numerous writs, orders of examination, personal communications with Jesse and voluntary payments were made, Jesse filed a Verified Third Party Claim of Exemption claiming not to be a party to the action as he was identified as Jesse Hermosillo and not Jesse Acedo.²⁵

On March 27, 2012, the Magistrate Court held a hearing on the Third Party Claim of Exemption.²⁶ On April 24, 2012, the Magistrate Court entered an order granting CBEI's motion to contest the claim of exemption but held that the garnished funds be held in trust until it could determine whether Jesse was a party.²⁷ On May 25, 2012, the Magistrate Court held a hearing on whether to set aside the order issued on April 24, 2012 because the Magistrate Court held a time limit for Jesse to file the motion to set aside the judgment.²⁸ On June 4, 2012, the Magistrate Court entered its Minute Entry and Order which set aside the April 24, 2012 order because the order contained an unagreed upon deadline for Jesse to file a motion to set the judgment aside.²⁹ The Magistrate Court also ordered that Jesse file a motion to set aside the judgment by June 8, 2012 and awarded attorney's fees to Jesse for that motion.³⁰

²⁶ R Vol. I, p. 147.

²⁴ R Vol. I, pp. 27-32.

²⁵ R Vol. I, pp. 87-89.

²⁷ R Vol. I, pp. 147-49.

²⁸ R Vol. I, p. 172.

 ²⁹ R Vol. I, pp. 172 & 188-89.
 ³⁰ R Vol. I, pp. 172 & 188-89.

On July 13, 2012, CBEI appealed the Magistrate Court's decision to award Jesse fees.³¹ On August 22, 2012, the Magistrate Court ordered that the default judgment against Jesse be set aside because the court "did not have jurisdiction" over Jesse, the "lack of service resulted in a void judgment" and that all funds obtained from Jesse as part of the default judgment be returned to Jesse.³² On August 29, 2012, CBEI filed an Amended Notice of Appeal to include the August 22, 2012 Order.³³

On March 25, 2013, the District Court heard the appeal.³⁴ On May 9, 2013, the District Court held that the Magistrate Court "failed to make a finding that the motion to set aside was timely under Rule 60(b)(4)" and that the "Magistrate Court erred in failing to state the authority upon which it based its award of attorney fees against CBEI."³⁵ The District Court on appeal vacated the orders of June 4, 2012 and August 22, 2012 and remanded the case back to the Magistrate Court for additional findings consistent with the decision of the District Court.³⁶

Despite the clear instruction on remand found in the District Court's Decision on Appeal, Jesse filed two new motions on July 22, 2013, entitled Request for Hearing on Sanctions and Attorney Fees and Jesse Acedo's Renewed Third Party Claim of Exemption Request for Sanctions and Attorney Fees.³⁷ Importantly, Jesse did not file an appeal on any issue. Rather than follow the clear instructions from the District Court on remand, on November 19, 2013,

³³ R Vol. I, pp. 251-54.

- ³⁵ R Vol. I, p. 340.
- ³⁶ R Vol. I, pp. 325-40.

³¹ R Vol. I, pp. 242-44.

³² R Vol. I, pp. 248-49.

³⁴ R Vol. I, pp. 322-24.

³⁷ R Vol. I, pp. 352-63.

the Magistrate Court heard the newly filed motions.³⁸ On January 28, 2014, the Magistrate Court entered an order granting Jesse's third party claim of exemption and awarding attorney's fees as a sanction against CBEI.³⁹ On March 11, 2014, CBEI filed a Notice of Appeal challenging the Magistrate Court's disregard of the District Court's instructions on remand and granting of Jesse's third-party claim of exemption.⁴⁰ On March 14, 2014, CBEI filed an Amended Notice of Appeal to include a request for transcripts.⁴¹ On November 24, 2014, the District Court held a hearing and found that there was not a proper final judgment entered by the Magistrate Court.⁴² On July 27, 2016, the Magistrate Court entered a final judgment on the matter.⁴³ On September 6, 2016, CBEI filed a Notice of Appeal to the District Court appealing from the Judgment entered July 27, 2016, the Order dated January 28, 2014, and the Order dated August 22, 2012, all entered by the Magistrate Court.⁴⁴

On July 20, 2017, the District Court entered its second decision on appeal, which affirmed that part of the Magistrate Court's Order granting Jesse's Third-Party Claim of Exemption and requiring the garnished funds to be returned but reversing the order granting attorney fees to Jesse under I.R.C.P. 11(a)(1), the District Court also awarded Jesse costs and fees on appeal.⁴⁵

- ⁴¹ R Vol. I, pp. 407-410.
- ⁴² R Vol. I, p. 486-87. ⁴³ R Vol. I, p. 498.
- 44 D.V. 1, p. 450.
- ⁴⁴ R Vol. I, pp. 500-503.

³⁸ R Vol. I, pp. 386-87.

³⁹ R Vol. I, pp. 388-92.

⁴⁰ R Vol. I, pp. 400-403.

⁴⁵ R Vol. I, pp. 565-76.

On August 29, 2017, CBEI filed its appeal of the District Court's decision to the Idaho

Supreme Court.⁴⁶ On December 15, 2017, CBEI filed an Amended Notice of Appeal to include

the Memorandum Decision Re: Attorney Fees on Appeal.⁴⁷ On January 9, 2018, this Court

entered its order consolidating CBEI's appeal filed on August 29, 2017, Supreme Court Docket

No. 45391 with CBEI's Amended Notice of Appeal filed on December 15, 2017, Supreme Court

Docket No. 45645.48

ISSUES ON APPEAL

- A. <u>DID THE DISTRICT COURT COMMIT REVERSIBLE ERROR WHEN IT AFFIRMED THE</u> MAGISTRATE COURT'S ORDER GRANTING JESSE'S THIRD-PARTY CLAIM OF EXEMPTION?
- B. <u>DID THE DISTRICT COURT COMMIT REVERSIBLE ERROR WHEN IT AWARDED JESSE COSTS</u> AND ATTORNEY'S FEES ON APPEAL?
- C. IS CREDIT BUREAU OF EASTERN IDAHO, INC., ENTITLED TO AN AWARD OF ATTORNEY'S FEES UNDER I.C. 12-120(1), (3) AND (5) AND I.A.R. 41?

STANDARD OF REVIEW

"When reviewing the decision of a district court sitting in its capacity as an appellate

court:

[t]he Supreme Court reviews the trial court (magistrate) record to determine whether there is substantial and competent evidence to support the magistrate's findings of fact and whether the magistrate's conclusions of law follow from those findings."

Portfolio Recovery Associates, LLC., v. MacDonald, 162 Idaho 228, 395 (2017)(Internal

citations omitted).

In determining the appropriate standard of review for a motion for relief

⁴⁶ R Vol. I, pp. 585-88.

⁴⁷ R Vol. I, pp. 632-35.

⁴⁸ R Vol. II, pp 6-7,

under Rule 60(b), the Court must consider what subsection of the rule is being invoked. "Where discretionary grounds are invoked, the standard of review is abuse of discretion." Accordingly, the Court must examine: "(1) whether the trial court correctly perceived the issue as one of discretion; (2) whether the trial court acted within the boundaries of its discretion and consistently with the legal standards applicable to the specific choices available to it; and (3) whether the trial court reached its decision by an exercise of reason." However, where nondiscretionary grounds are asserted, the guestion presented is one of law, upon which the Court exercises free review.

Berg v. Kendall, 147 Idaho 571, 576 (2009) (internal citations omitted). Finally, "relief from a void judgment pursuant to I.R.C.P. 60(b)(4) is nondiscretionary." *Dragotoiu v. Dragotoiu*, 133 Idaho 644, 647 (Ct. App. 1998).

This issue in this case revolves around I.R.C.P. 60(b)(4) from which relief is nondiscretionary. The District Court in affirming the Magistrate Court failed to apply the nondiscretionary provisions of I.R.C.P. 60(c)(1) when determining the issue of timeliness and whether the judgment was enforceable against Jesse. Additionally, the Magistrate Court ignored the nondiscretionary instructions given it by the District Court on remand. Therefore, the questions presented on this appeal are nondiscretionary and present questions of law and this Court shall exercise free review.

When reviewing the decision of a court to award attorney fees, courts apply an abuse of discretion standard. *Contreras v. Rubley*, 142 Idaho 573 (2006). However, when an award of attorney's fees depends on statutory interpretation, courts apply a different standard of review. The interpretation of a statute is a question of law over which a court exercises free review. *Id.* In this case, the District Court based its decision on an improper interpretation of I.C. § 12-120 and I.R.C.P. Rule 41. Therefore, this appeal is based upon statutory interpretation, and this Court should also exercise free review on the issue of attorney's fees.

APPELLANT'S BRIEF ON APPEAL

ARGUMENT

A. <u>THE DISTRICT COURT COMMITTED REVERSIBLE ERROR WHEN IT AFFIRMED THE</u> <u>MAGISTRATE COURT'S ORDER GRANTING JESSE'S THIRD-PARTY CLAIM OF</u> <u>EXEMPTION</u>.

Although the facts of this case are relatively straight forward, the legal procedure followed in this matter is extremely convoluted. In March of 2012, the Magistrate Court correctly denied Jesse's third-party claim of exemption but ordered the funds be held in trust until the court could "figure" the case out.⁴⁹ Later, in August 2012, the Magistrate Court held that the "Court did not have jurisdiction over Jesse Acedo as he was not provided proper service" and that this "lack of service resulted in a void judgment against Acedo."⁵⁰ CBEI appealed.

In its first Decision on Appeal, the District Court correctly held that even if the judgment was void from the outset, that did not "eliminate the need to determine under Rule 60(b)(4) that the motion was timely."⁵¹ After the matter was remanded to the Magistrate Court only "for proceedings consistent with this opinion," which was clearly to ascertain whether the motion to set aside the judgment was timely filed, Jesse improperly filed two new motions entitled Request for Hearing on Sanctions and Attorney Fees and Jesse Acedo's Renewed Third Party Claim of Exemption Request for Sanctions and Attorney Fees.⁵² The Magistrate Court then completely ignored the simple and clear instructions on remand which were to make findings as to the timeliness of the motion to set aside the judgment, and instead summarily

⁴⁹ R Vol. I, p. 147.

⁵⁰ R Vol. I, pp. 248-49.

⁵¹ R. Vol. 1, p. 337.

⁵² R Vol. I, pp. 352-63.

granted the third-party claim of exemption because Jesse "is not a party" and the court "has no jurisdiction" over Jesse.

1. <u>Even If A Judgment Is Void for Lack of Personal Jurisdiction As Jesse</u> <u>Claims, Jesse Must Still Make a Timely Motion to Have the Judgment Set</u> <u>Aside Just Like The District Court Ruled In The First Appeal</u>.

In its first Decision on Appeal, the District Court correctly found that "the Magistrate made no findings on the timeliness of Jesse's motion to set aside" as is required to set aside a void judgment, even one that is void due to lack of personal jurisdiction.⁵³ The District Court then correctly remanded to the Magistrate Court for further proceedings based on the District Court's opinion and a factual determination whether the motion was timely made. The District Court specifically stated:

[T]he Magistrate Court likely failed to make such a finding because it concluded that since the complaint was 'improperly served, it was void from the outset.' However, a finding that the judgment was void did not eliminate the need to determine under Rule 60(b)(4) that the motion was timely. *See* generally *First Sec. Bank v. Neibaur,* 98 Idaho 598, 605, 570 P.2d 276, 283 (1977) ("[A] void judgment does not affect the necessity of making a timely appeal. A party cannot perfect an appeal otherwise untimely on the grounds that the judgment appealed from is void.")⁵⁴

On remand, the Magistrate court failed to make a finding on the timeliness of the motion and

incorrectly concluded that because the judgment was void under Rule 60(b)(4), "[t]his court has

no jurisdiction over Jesse Acedo."55

The problem is that the Magistrate Court's actions circumvent the order on remand of

the District Court whose opinion became the law of the case. The District Court held that even

⁵³ R Vol. I, p. 337.

⁵⁴ R Vol. I, p. 337.

⁵⁵ R Vol. I, p. 389.

if a judgment may be found void under Rule 60(b), the judgment is nevertheless enforceable until a court sets it aside. And a motion to set aside a possibly void judgment must be brought within a reasonable time. Furthermore, although Rule 60(b) allows a judgment to be set aside when the judgment may be void (provided the motion is made within a reasonable time), Rule 60(b) does not permit that a defendant with an arguably void judgment is somehow a nonparty to the suit. *First Sec. Bank v. Neibaur*, 98 Idaho 598, 605 (1977).

This is precisely where the District Court erred on the second appeal. The District Court allowed the Magistrate Court to ignore instructions on remand to determine whether the motion setting aside the judgment was timely. Instead, the District Court held that the Magistrate Court properly determined that Jesse is a non-party without standing to bring a Rule 60(b) motion in the first place. In essence, the District Court allowed the Magistrate Court to put the proverbial "cart before the horse" and thereby implicitly sanctioned the Magistrate Court's overruling the District Court's first opinion on appeal.

This Court has specifically held that the analysis of a void judgment does not begin with the determination that the judgment is void. In *Thiel v. Stradley*, 118 Idaho 86 (1990), cited by the District Court in its first decision on appeal, this Court found that a judgment was void but then remanded the case to the District Court because the District Court had failed to address the reasonableness of time in bringing the motion to set aside. Specifically, this Court after finding the judgment at issue to be void stated in *Thiel*:

However, this does not end our inquiry. Under Rule 60(b), motions have to be made within certain specified time limits. Under Rule 60(b)(4) a litigant has a "reasonable time" within which to bring a motion to set aside a void judgment.

Thiel v. Stradley, 118 Idaho 86, 88 (1990).

APPELLANT'S BRIEF ON APPEAL

Thiel v. Stradley, 118 Idaho 86, 88 (1990).

This is exactly the scenario in this case. The District Court affirmed the decision of the Magistrate Court who failed to make any finding as to the timeliness of the motion to set the judgment as the District Court had previously ruled on the first appeal. Instead, both the District Court and the Magistrate Court have side stepped the central issue by declaring that the judgment is void and therefore Jesse is a non-party without standing to file a 60(b) motion. There is no law to support this analysis. Instead, Idaho law is that Jesse is a party even if the judgment were void. More important, Idaho law requires that before an otherwise void judgment can be set aside, the defendant needs to file a timely motion to set aside the

In the end, even if the judgment were void, Jesse would still be required to follow the requirements of Rule 60(b) and the lower courts are required to make findings as to the reasonableness of time within which Jesse raised the issue. At a minimum, this Court should reverse the decision of the District Court and remand the case for a determination as to whether Jesse raised the issue of a void judgment within a reasonable time. This is exactly what the District Court ordered the Magistrate Court to do after the first appeal but never did.

2. <u>This Court Should Find that 33 Months Is Not A Reasonable Time For</u> Jesse To Delay Before Raising The Issue Of A Void Judgment.

This Court has held that "to obtain relief from a void judgment under Rule 60(b)(4) of the Idaho Rules of Civil Procedure, a party must bring a motion for such relief within a reasonable time." *McGrew v. McGrew*, 139 Idaho 551, 559 (2003). In *McGrew*, this Court found that filing a Rule 60(b) motion twenty-one months after learning of the judgment was not

APPELLANT'S BRIEF ON APPEAL

a reasonable amount of time. *Id.* This Court has also affirmed a District Court's denial of relief from an otherwise void judgment due to an unreasonable delay or 17 months after the movant had learned of the judgment. *Meyers v. Hansen*, 148 Idaho 283 (2009). Importantly, in *McGrew* this Court explained that "what constitutes a reasonable time is judged from the time that the party learned of the judgment." *McGrew v. McGrew*, 139 Idaho 551, 559 (2003).

Additionally, this Court has specifically held that collection efforts provide sufficient notice of a claim. In *Wright v. Wright*, 130 Idaho 918, 922 (1998), the Idaho Supreme Court commented on the effect collection efforts have on the reasonable time standard contained in Rule 60(b) stating "[h]ad there been prompt collection efforts, the Wrights would have been put on notice of the claim and any delay in failing to move to set aside the default and default judgment would have been attributable to them."

In its first Decision on Appeal, the District Court held that "[a]lthough the Magistrate Court properly found the judgment was void under Rule 60(b)(4), it erred by failing to make a finding that the motion to set aside was brought within a reasonable time."⁵⁶ The District Court then held that the "undisputed facts place the date Jesse learned of the judgment between July and September 2009—no less than 33 months before the motion to set aside judgment was filed."⁵⁷

The facts of this case clearly demonstrate that Jesse did not bring his 60(b) motion within a reasonable time. On June 2, 2009, the Magistrate Court entered judgment against Jesse who then contacted CBEI's counsel on June 4, 2009, confirming he received and opened

APPELLANT'S BRIEF ON APPEAL

⁵⁶ R Vol. I, p. 336.

⁵⁷ R Vol. I, p. 336.

the judgment sent from the court.⁵⁸ On July 25, 2009, CBEI served Jesse an order of examination. On August 5, 2009, Jesse personally met with counsel for CBEI.⁵⁹ On August 26, 2009, CBEI sent a continuous wage garnishment to Jesse's employer.⁶⁰ On September 9, 2009, CBEI received a letter from counsel for Jesse and that same day CBEI sent a reply letter to Jesse's counsel.⁶¹ Counsel for Jesse did not respond to CBEI's letter and the garnishment on Jesse's wages remained in place. On June 21, 2011 and July 12, 2011, Jesse made two voluntary payments to CBEI.⁶²

Given the sheer volume of collection efforts by CBEI, it is undeniable that Jesse knew the judgment was against him. Additionally, counsel for Jesse in this case had represented Jesse for over thirty months at the time Jesse brought his motion, further compounding the unreasonableness for the delay in seeking relief under Rule 60(b). In addition, and to further illustrate why there must be a reasonable time standard, CBEI has incurred considerable costs of service, attorney's fees, and other expenses during the three years CBEI has attempted to collect on the judgment. No case in Idaho has held that failing to raise a Rule 60(b) defense of a void judgment for anywhere near 33 months is reasonable. To the contrary, 21 and 17 months of delay in other cases have been held to be unreasonable. *See Viafax Corp. v. Stuckenbrock*, 134 Idaho 65, 71 (Ct. App. 2000) (unexplained delay of five months was unreasonable under Rule 60(b)); *Meyers v. Hansen*, 148 Idaho at 291 (Seventeen months delay unreasonable); *McGrew*, 139 Idaho at 559 (twenty-one months of delay unreasonable).

- ⁵⁹ R Vol. I, pp. 141-46.
- ⁶⁰ R Vol. I, pp. 55-56.
- ⁶¹ R Vol. I, pp. 266-68.

⁵⁸ R Vol. I, pp. 141-46.

⁶² R Vol. I, pp. 141-46.

Because a 33-month delay in making a motion to set aside a judgment cannot be found to be reasonable based upon the facts of this case, and given the Magistrate Court's proclivity to help Jesse, and given the District Court's not enforcing its order on remand after appeal requiring the Magistrate Court to make specific findings on this issue, this Court should reverse the decision of the District Court granting the third-party claim of exemption and hold that 33 months is as a matter of law untimely thus making the judgment valid and enforceable against Jesse.

3. <u>This Court Should Reverse the Decision of the District Court as the</u> <u>Judgment Was Not Void For Improper Service</u>.

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