Uldaho Law Digital Commons @ Uldaho Law

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs, All

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs

7-2-2018

Credit Bureau of Eastern Idaho, Inc. v. Acedo Respondent's Brief Dckt. 45391

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

ARGUMENT

Standard of Review

When reviewing the decision of a district court sitting in its capacity as an appellate court, the standard of review is as follows:

The Supreme Court reviews the trial court (magistrate) record to determine whether there is substantial and competent evidence to support the magistrate's findings of fact and whether the magistrate's conclusions of law follow from those findings. If those findings are so supported and the conclusions follow therefrom and if the district court affirmed the magistrate's decision, we affirm the district court's decision as a matter of procedure. Thus, this appellate court does not review the decision of the magistrate court. "Rather, we are 'procedurally bound to affirm or reverse the decisions of the district court." *Smith v. Smith*, No. 44970, 2018 WL 3097050, at *2 (Idaho June 12, 2018)

Several Idaho Code sections are applicable to the Claim of Exemption. I.C.§8-507 states that a writ of attachment, execution or garnishment shall be served ONLY on those individuals holding or having in their possession "personal property belonging to the defendant." I.C.§ 8-507C states that the garnishment, if made on a third party, must again be for money or property held for a judgment debtor. I.C. §11-201 states that property liable to seizure is only that property "of the judgment debtor."

I. <u>The District Court did not error in affirming the Magistrate Court's order granting</u> Jesse's Third-Party Claim of Exemption.

In CBEI's initial argument, further false statements are put forward in an attempt to justify its position. CBEI states that in March of 2012 the Magistrate Court correctly denied Jesse's third party claim of exemption. This is a false statement, as the Magistrate Court never

denied the third party claim of Jesse. It was only on the false order presented to the Magistrate Judge that attempted to deny Jesse's third party claim. Also, CBEI claims that after the first appeal to the District Court the only possible action on remand was to have another hearing on a Rule 60(b) motion. This is also false. The decision from the District Court only stated that further proceedings consistent with the decision were to take place. Finally, CBEI states that Jesse improperly filed two additional motions following remand. This is also false on two levels. There were not two motions filed but a motion for a hearing on the Rule 11 sanctions and a request for hearing on the previously filed third party claim of exemption. It is clear that, even on this appeal, CBEI cannot help but submit false and misleading documents to the Court.

1. CBEI'S ARGUMENTS IN ITS BRIEF ONLY CONTAIN ISSUES NOT ON APPEAL

CBEI's arguments allegedly against the District Court's affirmation of the third party claim of exemption completely fail to address this issue and attempt to raise issues for the first time on appeal that were not addressed by the District Court on the second appeal. CBEI argues, 1. A judgment that is void for lack of personal jurisdiction must still have a motion to set aside the judgment; 2. 33 months is not a reasonable time for addressing a void judgment; and 3. The judgment was not void for improper service. Each of these arguments are **not** properly before this Court on appeal.

In the decision on second appeal, the District Court did not address the issue of any requirement for a Rule 60(b) motion. The District Court simply affirmed its previous, non-appealed, decision that Jesse was not a party to this action. The District Court then, correctly, stated that a non-party to a case does not have standing, or the ability, to seek to have a judgment set aside. R. p. 569. The District Court had previously determined that Jesse was not a party to this matter and that there was no judgment against Jesse. Therefore, it was unnecessary for Jesse

to seek to have the judgment set aside, as there was no judgment against him in the first place. Id.

The District Court also did not address the time frame to set aside a judgment pursuant to I.R.C.P. 60(b) in its decision on the second appeal. This was completely unnecessary for the District Court to do, as it had already determined that Jesse was not a party to the case and there was no judgment against him. As this matter was not addressed by the District Court on appeal, the issue is not properly before this Court on appeal now.

Finally, CBEI argues that this Court should reverse the District Court's decision that the judgment was void for improper service. This issue is not before the Court on appeal as this was a decision by the District Court on the first appeal, not on the second appeal. The time for CBEI to seek review of the first appeal has long since expired. If CBEI wished to have any determination by the District Court in the first appeal decision addressed by this Court, it only had 42 days from that appeal decision to do so. Having completely failed to appeal any part of the first appeal decision, CBEI cannot now seek review of those issues.

The issue of the third party claim of exemption is very simple. The first appeal decision by the district court made it perfectly clear that Jesse was not a party to this matter, the judgment in this matter was not against him, and the court had no jurisdiction over Jesse. These findings made it clear that Jesse was not a defendant and the judgment was not enforceable against him. After this decision by the District Court on the first appeal, the Magistrate Court was completely correct in granting the third party claim of exemption. Jesse was a third party to this matter, and there was nothing to show that he had any property of a defendant. The Magistrate Court court correctly identified this status, the District Court affirmed the status and this Court should also provide a clear and definitive statement to CBEI that Jesse is not a part of this matter. CBEI has failed to support the argument in this appeal that the District Court was incorrect in affirming the

Magistrate Court. Having failed to support its argument with relevant argument, case law or statutes, this Court is left without any choice but to deny the appeal.

II. <u>The District Court correctly awarded Jesse costs and attorney fees on appeal.</u>

The District Court properly awarded Jesse attorney fees and costs on appeal. It is without a question that this matter is a collection case that involved less than \$35,000.00. Therefore, this matter falls into I.C.§12-120(1). Pursuant to this section and I.C.§12-120(2), the prevailing party is entitled to an award of attorney fees, in addition to costs. Additionally, CBEI has claimed that this is an action to recover on an open account. Therefore attorney fees as well as costs are available to the prevailing party.

It is also without question that Jesse was the prevailing party on his third party claim of exemption and the resulting appeal. Therefore the district Court was correct in awarding attorney fees and costs to Jesse pursuant to I.C.§12-120.

CBEI argues that I.C.§11-203 is the more specific statute and therefore there should not be an award of attorney fees possible. This is incorrect. The Idaho Court of Appeal has held, "Section 11–203(b) provides that the prevailing party in a hearing on a claim of exemption "may be awarded costs pursuant to the Idaho rules of civil procedure." This section provides a basis for awarding costs, but not attorney fees, to the prevailing party in the hearing on a claim of exemption. It therefore does not provide the exclusive basis for any award of post-judgment attorney fees as the district court believed." *Action Collection Servs., Inc., v. Bigham,* 146 Idaho 286, 289, 192 P.3d 1110, 1113 (Ct. App. 2008). As CBEI cited to this case in its own brief, it is well aware of this case law, but still, inexplicably, argues to the contrary. This is a clear example of CBEI's willingness to attempt to deceive the Court on appeal.

Jesse, as a prevailing party in a case governed by I.C.§12-120 (1), (2), and/or (3) was

entitled to an award of attorney fees and costs. The District Court was correct in making this award.

III. Jesse is entitled to an award of attorney fees and costs on appeal.

As discussed above, this matter was brought by CBEI as a complaint seeking less than \$35,000.00 and/or on collection of an open account. This allows an award of attorney fees and costs to the prevailing party. I.A.R. 41 states that a party on appeal will be entitled to attorney fees if so entitled in the matter below. Jesse seeks an award of attorney fees pursuant to I.C.§12-120 (1), (2), and or (3) as supported by I.R.C.P. 54 and I.A.R. 41.

Additionally, Jesse seeks an award of attorney fees on appeal pursuant to I.C.§ 12-121. On appeal, I.C. § 12-121 authorizes the award of attorney fees and costs when the Court finds that the case was brought, defended or pursued frivolously, unreasonably or without foundation. In this matter, CBEI has continued a frivolous pursuit of collecting money from Jesse. This appeal is without foundation as CBEI has ignored the previous findings of the District Court, presented arguments not timely appealed, and has attempted to provide false and misleading statements to the Court. This Court has previously held a very strict reading of I.C.§12-121, as noted by the District Court in its second appeal decision. These rulings have largely resulted in stripping the ability of the Court to find that "litigative misconduct" is a sufficient basis for an award. This Court should again review this line of authority to allow for findings of litigative misconduct as allowed for in the plain meaning of I.C.§12-121. There are numerous actions, events and procedures that can take place that result in an enormous amount of expenses that are not in the form of signed, written documents. This matter is a clear example of what can happen. It should be found that CBEI only continues to pursue this matter in the hopes that the ever increasing cost of defense will eventually prohibit Jesse from continuing and that this appeal is completely frivolous and without foundation, resulting in litigative misconduct.

CONCLUSION

The decisions for the District Court should be affirmed and attorney fees and cost awarded to Jesse as noted above. Any further actions this Court deems proper should also be taken against CBEI and its counsel.